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SUMMARY

The Industrial Equipment Corporation, headed by FUJIWARA
in 1942-43, organized the conversion cf peacetime industries (as
textiles) to muniticens production and toek char e of a shipbullaing
progran. In this respect, as in connection with the Centre<l Asso-
ciations, Fujiwara criticized excessive government (Army—Navy)
interference with the business leaders'! handling of preduction.

When matters became serious, Tejo agreed to estavlishment
of the Cabinet Advisers Ceuncil so that the business leaders could
of fer advice on preoduction problems. In this line Fujiwara con-
ducted administrative inspections of coal supply for the steel
industry and of airplane production in 1943, The recommendations
he made are indicated in some detail on these matters, He gives
Army-Navy competition in the aircraft industry as the reason for
establishing the ijunitions Ministry.

He presents a rather detailed picture of alwnunum supply
difficulties (including serious waste) in the aircraft industry
A LS4

His third inspection dealt with shipbuilding, on which his
analysis 1s presented 1n some detail,

On tnhe Munitions Ministry, Fujiwara underlines the Army-Navy
competition as a major source of difficulty. His analysis e¢f Zal-
batsu relationships when he resigned stresses difficultles with
the new Zaibatsu and their quarrels with the old-line Zalbatsu.,
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The small plant program for iron and steel was adopted when
materials for the big plants were relatively available. Working
with poor coal and ore, the small plant program failed, both in
Japan and on the continent. Later, the big plants experienced
increasing shortages of good coal and ore, until they wcre virtu-
ally forced to suspend operations. Some of them were even broken
up for scrap. At this period an abortive. gfifort. was made to
transfer some of the big plants to the continent.
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Nov 17 1943 -
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Jul 10 1944 -

Dec 19. 1944
Jul 21 1944 -~
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Apr 26 1945
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| EHJIWARn GImJIBO

June 1869, Nagdno—ken. drd s. of FUJIW&RA Mohel

Roku. aunt Of TnNUEA Tetsuzo

)

45 ,fGraduatc of Kelo UHlVOfSlty.“

After Graduation became Edltor—lnHChlef of Mat sue
Niprpo.

¢ coidodngd :Mitanl - Bank, <o o0 sment g ki :
-~ Trangferred:to Mitsui Bussan Kaisha. .
:Manager of Slangnml, 410y and Talhoku Branches

sef Mitsui. | 2 6 JHA |
Chicf .of Luaber ant of MItSdl Bussan Kalsha.

'i“; Entered 0ji Paper Mfg.  Cou

Nominatcd Peer.

-+ Made inspection trip of Europe and Aumerica. .
.+ Publicatien af -his oqok_"Kogyo.Jlnon SblShln"
- -.(Spirit of Industrial -Japan). s
- President of Jepan-Sweden 50q1ety, obJect of
socicty was to foster good m1ll betweun Swedislhi

and Japanes. people, . .

_},Donatbd.quthOt.QtaDllSh Fualwara.Unrvcr51ty of

Technology.

 “ ;¢L1$t@a &S Chdlrnan of OJl Papor ﬂf&. Co § 91 Tonoka

Shinko Pulp Co; Hokkai Hydro-Blectric Powcr Co.

Uryo Electric Power Co;  Vice Chairman of manchuria
CIumdgration Assogiation; resigned from pr651dency

of all other conpanies.
Minister of Comiierce and IndustrV~XONhI Caolnct

President of Industrial Equrnuent Corp; sacceeded
by HIROSE Hisatada,: “

lMember*of Cab;net_Adv1sory.Cpuncil;

Minister without Portofolio in TOJO Cabinet and
concurrently Government Inspector of Factorlus

by Imperial Qrder. , ! :

Had been inspecting iron, steul and coal 1ndus—
tries in Korea; Manchuria, and Norih China. .
Minister of Munitionsk: in KOISO Cablaet' Succeeded

.. by YOSHIDa Shigeru.. .
- Member: of Gablnet.ndvisory Counc1l a931gned to

important nission pertflnlng to 1ncr615bd produc—

_iﬂtion-of iron-and. steel. .
Arrived-at Hsinking to:assune post of Imperl 51

Supervisor of Manchoukuo'!s War Industrles. title-

.Special War Potential Inspector.
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INTERROGATION NO. 504 (Cont'd)
MR, BISSON T RTINS T et o

Q.

During the first two years of the war, you were President of
the Industrial Equinment Corp.. Would you comment on the general
funetions of this organizationf?

At first, this organization was ordered by the government to

shift industry from peace-time production into heavy industry.
For instance, there was the spinning industry which, up to

that time, had produced heavily, but which was no-longer necded.
'I'hls was turned into 'scrap iron and turnod over towar in-

During these first two .years, how far would you say this
transformation had gone - had it taken over the major part

-~ of the textile industry or what proportion had been converted?

At present I do not recall the .exact percentage of the spin-

. hing. industry's equipment which was turned into scrap for the

effort, but I would say .that it was more than half anyway.

That more: than half means during the first t wo years? -

- Yes, by the end of the two years. 4nother one of the ob-

jectives of this organization was the production of ships.
As. you know, early in -the war, the Japanese Government faced

—a .growing shortage of ships due to sinkings by subuarines

and air attacks. Therefore, the governnent ordered us to

‘build ships, .. In order to keep down shipping costs, orders

were placed with the shipbuilders. These ships were then

taken over: by the Industrial Equipment Corp. and sold to the
ship purchasers at a price below the cost of production. The
Corporation absorbed dhe difference between the high cost of

Production and the low cost at which the sihips were sold to

the purchaser.

1T. DORR

J_Q-
A,

o

P

- _

MR.

Why was this organization not set up as a government bureau?
This organization was not a stockholding corporation - it was
organized as a result of the setting up of a public corpora-
tions law whichwas debated in the Diet and finally estab-
lished, and I was made tie first President of it.

When was: 1t set up? |
It was set up in the early part Of 1942.

L

..Aﬂd, dld.ltﬂhave-any plaaning or policy-naking functions,

or:was it purely a financing and subsidy arrangement?
All the planning was done by the.govermient and we were
sinply:given the:orders which we atteupted to carry out.

In the operations of this corporation, would he say that it

. was allowed to operate freely cnough so that it contributed
‘to an e fféctive .use of naterials that were available?

The corporation had very .little liberty in thesc lines. We
were s imply ordercd by the government to take the equipnent

of the spinning companies and turn it in for scrap. O0f course,
the companies themsclves were loath to do this and ours was

the unhappy task of explaining the thing to them and seeing

to 1t that they broke up their machinery.

BISSON

Qe

To what extent were these machine tools and other equipnent

convertible to war industries without being actually turned
into scrapg
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INTERROGATION HO.504 (Cont'd)

Qe

I don't recall now how much of that there was., Of course, such

' - : o -
o Qe

Lie
things as motors and machine tools were transferred for use in
heavy industries but the anount of such equipment was Very,
very smally |

LT. DORR

Qe Who deterained the compensation thit these conpanies were 1o
set in turning in their equipnent? . ’

A, An appraisal association was s¢t up at the instince of the
govermient and this association carried that function.

Qe ind, then the corporation pald whatever was decided was the

Hir vriced

A. Yes, the corvoration paid those funds exactly as tiey were
nssessed by the appraisal association.

Qs Were there any other industries which were converted other
than the spinning industries? .

A. Yes, there were. others. I cannot say right now just which ones,
but in gencral, any peace-tine 1lndustry which was not essential
to the war was changed., There was the paper nills - the weav-
ing industry, and sinilar outfits.

Did the cornoration decide which industries should be converted
or was that given to them by soue other organization? °

A, This wes all decided by the governnent.

MR, BISSOWN .

You stated thot- the corperation did not have control over tie
. uses of these materials. Would you eXpress your opinion &s
. to the uses of them. Did you tnink tais operation was conb-

.- ,ducted efficientliy? - FalR N BRI,

A... To me, a business men, it did seem that thlles went very slowly
under governnent control, but I supposc that for a gove rnment,
that is about all that could be expected,

Q. Was it’'merely betause the operation procceded too slowly or

- were there other short-comings in the way the matter was

i .-c0nducted?¢;;-”

LT.

Qe

- .

Ay,

~ With regard to the two lines bf work'thdt'i hatve ‘already nen—

tioned, I don't know of any specific shortcomings aside fron

tre fact that they were too slow. However, in another line of
activity, I do think, as & business ‘man, that there were €rrors
in judgnent and operation. For instance, as the war progressed

and it becane apperent et iron production iust be, increased,
the cornorotion was ordered to build a large nuiber of war
plants to be turned over to private operators. The corpora-
tion put up the rioney for.these ptants. However, with the war
developed to the state in which it was, 1t seened foollsh 1O

build such plants when they-wduld*prOvejofnso'1itt}e value to us.

-
. a ~ : il " .
' . " ; 5 L ' 2 . ‘ . p S E. o = wl mr'™ &
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. What do you mean by "such'plants" - were they blast furnaces,

o@an-heqrths-oriwhat;werevthey? i .
Well, for example, Japan-nad bé6n7importinthhé:bulk of fier
iron ore from Hainan-and the Yanoste Velley ‘but as shipping
. be¢ane scarce, it becane more and nore difficult to supply this
~10re,”which;wﬁsfused'in'ﬁhe-Steéi ~41ls at Yawata and Hirohata.
To.neke up.for this loss in stecl pro&uctidn,‘the governent
qrdered;the.dorporatiOnito-builﬁ a ‘larce nuiber of suall nwiber
0of snall steel plants to wtilize ‘the low-grade ore found 1n
Japan,, . B s Lo AR
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INTERROGATION NO.504 (Cont'd)

Qe When did it make this decision and where were the plants 1o be

‘ buidt - in Japan or in Koreal? v B 5 |

A. - These organizations were small and I don't remember in detall,
but I would say that they were begun about a year after the
corporation was set up, and most of them werg on the Japanese
mainland, although there were a few in Korea.

MR. BISSON

Q. Is his general idea here that the error lay in the fact that
it would have been better to have the nrivate industrialists
build these plants rather than the government?

A Well, I give this example as to steel production because it
jllustrates a point: The government ordered us tO build these
plants and lend them to the operators but we felt it was not
wise because such.plants would not be able to produce advan-
tageously nor come -up to the expectations of the government,
and se business men, we advised against it. However, the

- government did not listen to us, but simply ordered us 1o
carry out their plans.

Q. Why wouldn't' the plants produce?- -

- A, I would think that the biggest reason why things went badly

was thit the government was unreasonable to begin with., IV

'did not know the actual situation - neither the Army, Navy

nor Munitions Ministry fully comprchended the problems involwed.

Furthermore, many of the operators to whom these factories

were turned ‘over were inexperienced and, therefore, unable to

carry.on the work advantageously.

Qs Then, in the early months of '43 after the Cablnct Advisors
| Council was set up, wcre the Cabinct Advisors active in
suggesting improvements? - - -
A. Yes, such advice was given. -

Qs What were the main problems before the Cabinet Advisors Coun-
cil in its early months? | |

A. In answering your question, perhaps I should give you soie
fundamental reasons for the creation of this Advisory Councll.
At the beginning of the war, the military was resolved to have
as 1little as possible to do with civilian capitalists or
specialists. Their objective seemed tO be to handle and con-
trol everything themseclves. However, things did not g0 too
well and during the Tojo Cabindt period, they rcalized their

hmisteke and decided it was time to let "thé candy nake the
candy": i.e., they realized that shipbuilding should be in the
Handa of shipbuilding experts; that &luainun production
should be directed by specialists in that field; that
banking should be done by bankers; and, that industry should
be run by industtrialists. It was in connection with this
'shift in policy that the Advisory Council was set up.

Qe In' the Cabinet' Advisors Council, you had a group of eight Or
nine advisors - each one of those men - Suzuki, Yamashita,
Fujiwara, etc., were the heads of very lmportant industrial
control associations. They were also the heads of tnelr own
previous enterprises in many cases. Were thesc men not al-
rcady running their own industries? To what extent was the

. Army running their businesscs?

A, As 1 explained, this Council was sect up because the government
~ Army and Navy - had discovered the plans werc not being
carried out too well'and they needed expert advice, and faor
that reason these men - Suzuki for advice on aluminum produc-
tion and related fieclds; Yamashita for shipbuilding - and I,
too, as a counsclor, gave consideruble advice.
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That does not answer the question I asked - These men were
already heads of the control associations?

Perhaps I should explain further that although these men were
already at the heads of their respective organizations, still
because of the controls and interferences of the governnent,
they had been limited and could not express themsclves freely,

. but this change brqught about .& situation wherein thesc nen

were given nore freeaon and could express their 0p1n10ns and
Zive adv1ce.

LT. DOR:

Q.

¥

How was the control formerly exercised - in what way were

they controlled?

For instence, the government, i.e. the Arny and Navy, inter-
ferred with these companies down to the swmallest details and
issucd orders and directives Just as they would to a group of
soldiers so that componies themselves were consideraebly
restricted. . . s

You nean, in the actual operation of the oroductive facilities?
Let me give you some exanmples as to why thingzs did not nove

so weil. For instances, tinese companics, after making con-
siderable studies, realized that they 5ﬂould vay certainweages
to get the monpower they necded, or that they should give bo-
nuses 1n order to increase production.' However, the govern-
nent would not listen to their advice and refused their re-
quest. Furthermore, the military often sent men into the
factories just because they were favorites of the military and
viery often these men were inexperienced and could not carry
the responsibility assigned .to- them. Things like this greatly
interfered with thc operation of the compinies.

MR. BISSOW

Q.

A,

Ay

The Major Industries Associations Law gave the neads of the
control associations great power - were these dircctives and
Arny-Navy interference in violation of the statutes which
set them up? ;

This did not constitute a violation of that law since the
heads of thc control associations had to get pernission from
the government to nmake any changes inwages or to pay boauses
or to shift manpower,

Were thesc problems in the back of tae ninds of the Cﬁbinct

~advisors Council when it considered the formn tlon of & Muni-

tions Ministry?

This natter of setting up-a Munitions Ministry had no connec-
tion with the advisory Council. 1In this Council, the advice
of specialists was called for as the government realized the
shortcomings in its own policies and since these specialists
pointed out to the government some serious c¢ituwations, ad-

;ministrativ@ inspectors were established and mede a carcful

survey, of* industry in an effort to bring about necessary
reforms,

Whaot connections were there between these inspectors and the
scries of personal reports by members of the Advisors Council
that were made to the Emperor in August 19437 What werce the
reasons and subjeects of these revnorts, mede to the Euperor?
Ordinary inspcections of industry had bcen ordered by the
ninistries concerned, but in this case, when the adainistra-
tion inspectors were essgsteblished, it was by order froi. the
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INTERROGATION HO. 504

A.. (Cont'd) - e . Y |
Emperor himself and, therefore, reports on these inspec¢tions
- went: to the thronei They were hot made in person, however,

but. subnitted in writing,

LT. DCRR

Qe 4are there copies of those reports available?
A, Thesc were delivered to the Premier, who in turn passed them
on and I, nyself, have no copies of then.

MR. BISSON

Q. We are speaking of two different things - these adainistra—

- . tive inspection reports submitted to the Premier were .one
thing, but there were actual visits to the Emperor from August
16 to 28, 1943, in which these nen were actually received by
the Emperor and which were reported on at sreat length?

A, I nade three such inspections but at no tinme was I ever called
in to audience with the Emperor to report on these things.
My reports were delivered to the Prenier.

Q. Where would these reports be now - would they be in the Prinme
. - Minister's office?
4.  These reports were submitted on the order of the Premier so

I would supposc he would have copies of then.

LT DOEKR

Qe Don't you have copies? 1Isn't it a grent event in Japan to
make a report to the Emperor? Wouldn't you keep coples for
your own personel files?

A, These things of which I speak were very secret and when I gave
up:my position, all such secret documents had to be turned in.

Qe Can you tell us what was the subject matter of the three re-
ports you made?

A, With regord to my first inspection - that concerned shortuges
in steel. as shipping deecreased, serious problems arose in
the supplying of the steel industry and essential production
was declining, At that time, the steel mills in Muroran and
&t Kamaishi were producing steel with coke made from Kailan
coal shipped in from North China, I ursced that Hokkaido
coal be used for this purpose so that the snips which had been
hauling to Hokkaido night take coal to Yawata for the Nippon
Steel 1Mills., When I presented these arcunents in the Advi-
sory Council, they were vigorously oprosed on the grounds that
Hokkaido coal would not be satisfactory. Therefore, I was

'sent to make an inspection of the situation. That was in May
19423, | |

LT. DORR

" Q. At that time, had there been a drop in steel production, which
was worrying the Japanese? .
A, The tendency was for production to start down, and the govern-
ment realized'the need for increasing production, That is what
had brought about the alarn,

- Qe That is, there had been no drop, but they needed more supplies?
A, Yes, that is right.
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Qe What was the result of his inspection -~ what did he recomaend
as & result of it? o

A. . The result of my flrst trip was that thuy carrled out 1y

) f;suggestlon. fa | s Yoo

I - ™ 'Thuy ae01dea to use Eokkeido SoBLE Ay

AL TYDS- e word the plant at Muroran used only Hoddaldo coal.

T T ;The glant at Kumalshl used 30% of North China coal and 70%
PNHOkkﬂldO coal after that, P Ny

Qe What about the second report - wnat was that?
L The second inspection was made 1n Septe.ber.of the sane year
. and concarnaduairplane production, = - # i v 5

“'4

lllll

Da. Can you bp more spec1fic and tell us what the problens were
- and what they werc trying to achieve? |
A.  Specking frankly, at that time therg was. con31dercolb CONIpE—~
tition between the Army and Navy in airplane vroduction, which
was. not very bencficial for thne netional war effort and it was
felt we should try to get them together. - Therefore, I endea-
vored to makp_a survcy of national resources:to discover what
could be produced if the full national strelgth was put 1into
;;h;.qork,qf airplane nroduction.

MR. BISSON

B . Wbs 1t part of that report that suegbsted un1f1cmt10n of
- alrcr bl of nroductlon in the Munitions Ministry?
,A; The 5overnnent comnand to unify the arny.and Navy eaircraft
~ production in the Munitions Ministry was given beforc I was
'ordered to nake- the inspection, The purpose-of my inspection

.. was- 1o dlscover the potential of produgtion 1f everything
kprs th into A% .

Qe Wl Lt wa s thu group that dEVLlO)ed the suggestion for thne Muni-

tions Ministry? Who were the nen who worked on that?

#A. .1 am not. too.sure on exactly what led upn to this development.
"I wes simply sent out to meke- the inspection, but thesc talks
‘,orlblqatua in the Cabinet Flanning Board between the arny

and Navy and in the Ministry of Commerce and Industry and
crew out of the COMUbtlthn which had cheracterized Aruy and
Navy aircraft proauctlon.

.Q; ;_nnu, Mr. Fuglwhra's idens themselves noved in this direction?
Did they 21so.help out in this?

o e ; I.don't thlnk ny- contribution had ﬁnythinb o do with the

de01310n to- coablne. I sinply was an expert delegated to dis-
coycr production caprcity. '

Q.  You mentioned there was competition betwegn thc army and Navy.
Do you mean competition for material - nenpower - productive
. . feeilities? Exactly what was the competition between thenm?
A. . There was constant competition: in all lines - in manpowcr,
- nmaterial, machinery, buildings in foct, :everything.

MR.. BLSSON.

Qe Was 1t gartlculurly baa in - the 1rcraft 1hdustry?

. This competition was extrenely keen, as I said, and the Aray
and Navy were each anxious to build even one more plinc, if 1t
could be donu, The Navy was ahend of the a ny in technical
skills and the Army tried its best to catch up with the Nevy,
Then, the Navy tried to keep ahead of the Aray and so the
thing develoued into an intensc struggle for suprenacy.

o04 - 9
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INTERROGATION Ii0, 504 (Cont'd).

L,

What did they decide to do about it? |

I think that the reason for setting up the HMunitions Ministry
probably developed out of this severe competition between the
arny and Navy in aircraft production. Both the government
and the Arny and Navy recognized that the thing had gone to

‘serious extremes and it would be very cdvantageous to bring

them together in a single aircraft ministry and steps were
taken to bring thot about. I then was aprointed to make ny
survey of the rotentialities.

What was the result of it?

At that tinme, airplane production amounted to around 8,000
to 10,000 .lanes per yetr — both Army and Navy - and as a
result of ny inve:tigation, I reported that the national
strength should, if it were at all wisely used, be able to
produce 53,000 planes ner year.

Way did you believe such & great 1incre: se was possible?

It would take a long tine if I went into details on this
question but I can give you an overall conclusion that would
be bised something like this: The Aray and Navy were stirring
up a lot of fuss with their competition but were not producing
mach results. They had very large factories and pretty good
macninery but when the Army built a big plant, the Navy built
one alongside it. When the Navy built a -»lant, the Aruy iu-
nediately built one beside that, so that there was a lot of
corpetition with 1little thought to efficiency. There was

no lack of plants, but a tremendous lack of efficient opera-
tions. My conclusion was that if enough men and machines were
placed in these factories, and then given the necessary

su vlies, they could turn out the planes. 1 went to each

of these plants, talked with the men, together with then
figured out how nany planes they should produce, and thus
arrived at the figure that I save,

Did you feel that this rate could be achieved with the anount
of raw naterials then avoilable to the aireraft industry -

I mean those allocated to the aircraft industry?

Tnis may take a little time. I cannot give you the picture
without going into detail,

What we would like to get is whether you expected to «.chieve
this gres t increase only by allocating qddltlonal noterial
and nenjower or whether you expected to “chleve 1t nerely

by an increcsc in the efficiency of the use of the NeNPpOWET
and v lant already allocated to the industry?

It would be necessary to increase nan ower, nachine tools and
weterials to a grei ¢ extent. This estimate of 53, 000 was based
on a su;..ly of some 222,000 to 300,000 tons of alwiinun - er

year. This would be made from bauxite shij;ped in from the
south., |

Then, you would have had to iacrease the im.orts of bauxite
and you would have had to increase the ;lants for ..rocessing
that bauxite before you could have attained any incresse in
airplane production.

This was based on a guarantee by the government of suy,lying

. from 220,000 to 300,000 tons. There was am,.le equi,.uent for

srocessing it. It was a natter of sup lying the factories.
Whllu ny flsures were based on that aﬂount due to a ghort=
dge of shi, uing, thby,nbver reached 1it,
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INTERROGATION N0.50« (Cont'd) - =

Q. How ebout the amount of plant aviilable for. expending aircrait
~roduction - would that have had to be ex,anded also? Was
theru sufficient plant ca~“c1ty to achieve sucn a rate?
A, - There was no need of increasing bu¢ld1nas and the general

faclilitles, What.was needed was ‘wore machine tools, menpower
and the necessary materials. o

Q. How nmuch of an increasc, ftrcenta&e-W1se. in machine tools
- would h¢ve been necessary? |
A, I don't remember the exact fisures but since tne plan called
for steyping up production from around 10,000 to 50,000 planes
8 year, it certainly Sug&fdted the need for & conswaurable
increase in macnine tools.

Qe Is there any written data on which this report is based that
' ig availlable? | ; -
‘A, I don't have it nyself, but there must be complete reports,
because when I nade ny revort to the Prime Minister, I furni-
. shed hinm with detailed reports. Another thing that shocked
e when I got into this investigation was that. only 55p of
the aluninum was used in.planes - the other 45p%, which was
scran’ aluninuil, Iouad 1ts way into ¢civilian goeods such as
pots and pans “qd tools and other itens - most of which were
ex loited on the blcck narket, ' Fron- ‘the standpoint of a
‘business-men, this seened to be a serious situation. The
government was all excited apouy pushlnb productlon but they
~ovorlooked quch LT t leﬂks as tnat

- Qi+ Can you give; us: tne ye%r on that? . :
'A?"-This was in Sept. 19&3 at the tlme I' nade iy inspection,

Q.- How Qld you f nd out about tHis? Who told you?

A When I started lookln& into £, T saw 1t Jiyself.. 1 made ay
~ recomnendations on the basis of 'using 95% of the alunimun
-+ for aircraft production, i.e., 95% of 220,000 to 300,000

EOnsSy whieh 1 aeCLarudxdas essential fﬁr Jﬂklnb 53,000 jlanes
e year.. ' " f & .

MAJOR ARMSTROAG T At 34T,

Q. Are you speaking - in respect to 55p nf new, firgin aluminun

_ or that plusg glil sLC)ndary scrap? OO TR

4. I belleved that 99ﬂ of . sheet aliuainum scrap cvuld be reclaliged
| " “and that 90% of alunminum nachine-cuttings -could be reclailned
so> that as the stuff was used over and over, a great deal

of reclaation was possible. 2

LT, DORR'

Q. A&re you suP5e0t¢nL th?t that was wheré the &5 was, coning
~ - from that was not be ing ‘used? '
Ao - This 45% that I nentlonoa wa s not llﬂltLd ltabetle“ ko Bl

aindil that ‘went 1nto the blﬂck market or, in fact, that uscd
by civilians, for in nany faetories it was needlessly used
. for nmakihg thlnbs that could have been- produced from so:le-
.- thing else - alullnun for bascs for machinery ' end cupboirds
and. other needloss consumptlon, A 00d et l nd 1t would g0
to thC.blﬂCK}Wﬂrﬁet, nf which I sueaK.

MAJOR. APMSTRQSQ-

Qe At that time and in reclation to the 10,000 planes a year then
being wrnduced, the aircraft industry was recoivins all 1%
needed and it was only necessary to use the 99% of your alu-
ninun to expand the wroduction to the figure you recomuaended?

504 ~ 1l
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Virtually all aluninum did go into aircraf't vrodud¢tiony although

sorle wus used to take the place of copper, which was very scarcei
Aluminum wite was produced to tbke the place of co.per wire.

If the inports of aluminum had come up to the figure I Dased

by calculations Qn, then we wvould have had enough. The amount
of Rlunihum dded for wire and such Vurposes was very, Very

smally so that all aluminum was assigned to the aircraft in-

- dustries and there were very strict rules against the use of

aluminun in other lines. However, while all of it was essigned
to aircraft production, about 45/ leaked out, so that it was
not used in alrcraft ﬂroductlon.

- Dia theyHHCCept your répbrt and try to carry out this _.rogram?

Because orders had coume fronm the Throne, the plan was adopted
-both by the Planning Board, the Aray and Navy, .and the Muni-
“tions Mlnlstry. which was set up by that tine. However, as
was often. the case in those days,. the lesssr officials - heads

- of bureaus and Lewertments - did not carry out the plan.

‘mow, we wmula 11ke to hear about your thlrd re;ort

In Noveuber 19&3 I was nade Ninlster without Portfolio and

Ithousa it is a little emba Arrassing for me to say so, it appears

that the Bovernnent was quite well pleased with the work I had
done . *rev1ously and for that reason they gave nme this honor,
Idnedlatel} after that I was asslbncd to make an investiga-—

tisn of shinpbullding., At that tinme - after Novenber 1943 —

Sblbbulldlnb amounted to 750,000 tons a year, but sinkings,

as I recall, amounted to 800,00C to a million.tons ver year,

so that sroduction.was behind lossesss and resulted in a serious
‘S1tuat10n for production. 'Early in 1944 I made an inspection
of our shipbuilding yards. At that time the g overnuent was
ho»ing to produce 1,400,000 tons of shipping during the year.

_However, as a result of  my 1nspect10n, I recommended that the

coal be set at l 800 000 tons.

And..it was.felt that that goal could be attained?
The goverament had based its orders for 1,400,000 tons of shiz-

Ling on availeble materials. I told them that I could produce
1,800,000 tons with the same materials.

How?

For instance, the production for one month on the government
schedule would'be‘IZ0,000 tons: . I told thern that by increasing
eff101ency they could raise that to 150, 000 tons and then I
told then to .ive 1e the extra 30,000 tons. I would take those
sblps and haul nore sulJlies with then and turn those supplies
into nmore ships and in that way, like a rolline snowball, I
could build up to a very much greater tonncge.

Then, it was based primarily on the idea that the industry was
not operating efficiently?

They had the materlal to bulld the l,&OO 000 tons all right.

&bl 4 wr0posed.qu to 1ncrease construction efficiency and then

use the additional ships to get more meterial, The Navy, 1in
Hartlcular. was. very'much pleased w1th.wy report and told me
to go right ahead with my plan, which I did. Things went quite

-well at f1rst1 Just as we had planned,. but in the neantime, the

air-raids. aestroyed fﬂctories the war situation in general
got worse, and worse for shlpilna, and in the latter part of
this period the plan could not be carried nut, About that
tine I was made Munitions Minister and left-tne work I had
taken OVET,
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.T. - "
5

;;the fires had gone out in-the. furnac:s.

@, %)

L e e

(At this point, a quebtlon on 1raa nd*Steél'*rnduﬁtion'wa i
asked, and Mr. ?quuara was requested t7 give a brief "sumnary. )
I don't have figures on that industry here and ny meadry is

SO .QOY I would not try 40 rucall thei. howcver, ag far-as

the Lteel 1ndustny is cgﬁcerned, evcn'bofore ‘the air raids
began, Jraductlvn had fallea off until you ey as wcll shy

N
L
LA

-

Baiare tno alr ralds be;an ~ whbn wnula that be?
With the fall of Scn..-au. shipping took'a’ very ‘r.LbrulJt turn down-
ward and that rosulted in'a f2lline off of L oo G of eral so
that the iron aand ste¢l industry was almost ‘b¥oucgnt 'ty & stop,.
I think .that tae. gaveraneat has wroduced figures on the snii-
ping 81tuat10n and you nay. flreuuy have . thCL ik 4 you nave not

,dﬂd waula lluL theﬂ;_l will. tav, anclf. %9 Qut thci and brlnD

then to the next nee ris Ty IR | rebret thf‘*t any mcu...lcnts whlch
1 had and wmich.nigcht be of lnt rest to you, haf th bo return-

,ed 10 tae goave ranent because they WeLe ‘secret. HQWLVLT: i S

there arc certain aﬁculbnts you w@nt and will & tell e, I will
try to get hold af-thnse cocunents fron the | shvernhent, I
~will-do oy best-to . get: hold, of L8 nuch,laterlal as jnssible

and look it over and brlaL it 4o our JLKL confbruﬂce. ” 3

-_
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There is onc guestiosn I wanted to. ask »2n o point oF 11ct.
Thc Cabinet Advisnrs Chuncil was establisned nri; LmJ.J.y i 1943,
I' hove sgen. a reference that you were an advisnr beisre taat

idﬂtelf a: senarate,. s. LCl&l EEVIBITE. . it 5w E L e h A

At firet I was advisor of the Navel Minjistry, . -

-~ When was that?. .

Febe 6, 192, On tnb latn of Tarbh i@ﬁS,I bece e &*v* WO 0

the Cavinet.: I was. 511’1; l &, s:'..lc.,*lt NbL ac'r' gr. 'L went béfare

the Emoeror: tf:) explain tm,' ctual 1uuu~«trlal casncity of ‘the

Qmuntry aqa talked to the mﬂﬂ'rar for db)ﬂt_do mindtés. The
main noint made to the Enocror was tztt'tho Japiinesy industrial

.capacity had . not nade nylﬂri rgss un to thét"time.j His wnint

to tae Huasernor was t“at. cutniired 0 nﬁurlca, ALLLHL c¢tcC.
the devcl e n it Of t“.t., J )¢ nt.., S ek 9 £y L Clisl hed bea,u Ve 2 4 ¢ bEiCkWEiI'C-L.

i

Thiag ingicrted, wroswocbly, ti qt the i o Pat de Songernea

-OVer. the.] 1ngustrial . situaticn in. tlie cquntl".}’?

ihL,JL qur 514*1J wented t2 be intrsduced tH ﬂll thu ulffmrcnt
Crﬂﬂnalltles in the Cublget_aad bpt thelr bbneral Tl‘ﬂb aua
it wa s GSSLutlully 8 routine wvislit, i

l...lr

But the successive visits of several advisers t6 tae Baperor

in the periond.ausust 13-206 could harcly oe routine? L

The flrct'tlme I saw tie Bir, urdr il March, wdgs one df a series

of interviews with the Bmperor. ,Ii occurred. towa ol t“e end

of kiareh, anc was a Plna 5 il 1ntr3@uut13p for the auvlisers 'S

U0 express tgglr neral VlEWb —~ m9Te or less to test their
intelligence, au¢tabllltv cuc. as. a “'blﬂut anlSCTS¢

Well, my question was -~ What' was t*m"é'::c‘ jal situatioson thet re-
quired most of the adviscrs to visit the Bmperor on’hug 16-28, 19-37

as-a patter of fact, my neuwory is tnat aluost cvery adviser ex-

cent you saw the Eiperor,s @nd you 1&3 nave beed travelling av
that tine.; -1 thougut alHCb S0 1an weht in at t et tise it tmst
have been A weLl~knﬂwJ veﬂt and I thou,ht Serhars you knew zbout
it evea though you nay nnt have bccn'qresent at tnﬁ tine.
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INTERROGATION NO.504 (Cont'd).

A. There were nany, many grave nroblems that céme up at that time -
and I do not remember that particular event.

Qe On that »oint, would you say that the perind during the sumner
‘of 1943, before. the Munitions Ministry was organized - would
you. say ‘that the sunner of 1943 was a neriod of confusion and

. gifflieculty? - R : f

A, Up to this seriad,: the‘hrny and Navy haa been separately t rylng
t» push through the war econony - but since they were unuacqua-
inted with practical industrial management, they therefore had
to call in the civilian' advisers. Sn I was not in on the.aruy
and Navy fight. |

Qe I an just asking a sim.le question - During this sunmer of

i 1943 as conpared with 1942, or conmpared with 1944, would he

say that adninistratively, it was nore confused? Was 1t more

confused in 1942 or' 1943 or 194«?

A. : In those three years, the Arny and Navy were fighting. so much

" .. that everything was hashed up, but in 194« it inproved when
they called. in the:civilian experts,

Q. . In other words, 1t was worse 1in 1943 than in. 1912, particularly
in adninistration?
A Yes, they all were nixed up.

Qe In 1942, you were head of the Industrial Equipment Corp, and
adviser to the Navy Ministry. Did you hold any other positions
in 19427

A. No, I had no otherpposition.

g8 What were the subjects on which you advised the Navy Ministryt
A, There were about five men at that tine advising the Navy Minl-
stry. At.-first I was called in by the Navy to give advice.
on the cdiiinistration of the South Seas and I excused nyself
fron that as not beins familiar with it. So; then they asked
ne to study the industrial situation in Japan and to consider
how they.might remedy the shipbuilding situation at that time
because they were losing so many ships in 1943 and they had to
.do snrmething to expand shipbuilding capacity. I simply said
that I considered the shole operation of shipping control
and. transyortation, ete. very slow and very inefficient, so 1
drew uo ar series of recomuendations.

Qe What were ynur snecific recomnendations to expand the ship-
building side of. it? :

A, 1 said that un to this time in the shipbuilding cu1901ty thcy
were not doing; better than 400,00 to 500,00 ntons jer year
in production. I thought there would be no-difficulty in _.ro-
ducing twice that amount. If yov want the exact amount I re-
comaended, I can get that for you l: ter,

Qe I am not s much interested in the figures as in the measures
you were going to use to increase the production,

A, At the time I said that.the Navy had no idea as to how to
proceed and the communications people had no idea as to how
to-proceed, but the government said, "You have to increase
vroduction" so they left the. entire program up to Le as a
business man to carry it nut. As a business man I could see
the necessary steps to take. |

Qe Did they need nore iron and steel or did they need more nan-
power or what did yauyrecommend?

A.- 1 suggested that shipping experts should be called u.on. I
did not give specific suggestions nf my own. I am not a
shinping expert..
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INTERROGATION NO,504 (Cont'd).

‘ Q.- These recommendations were in 1942. --In what month ‘were they!
A. About the summer of 1942, I-sald in the last European war they
. produced one 7,000 ton ship in the ‘Kawasaki -Dockyard every month.
. In this-war (early in 1942, Ed,) they were producing one ship
. " every five or six montds in the seme dockyard. =

Q- WhéﬁfyOﬂﬁbecdmé;ﬂuﬁiﬁi@nﬁ Minister injqu1y7l9443=Wha€'did you
S eonceive $0 “be-the major tagk of the Munitions Ministry?
Ao When I becaime Munitions iinister, I considered that -there were
. “ghreé imiortant -jobs todo: - 1. To expand aircraft production;
.+ 7 2, Toincrease the production of iron and-stesl; &, To step
T gy ‘plumdinui production, - Then, I stopped "therey and I sald:

L]
W -

"Phe defeat at Saipan ‘shows very clearly there-is*sometiing
*“":’éeriquéfy*ﬁfdng““andfl*asked-ﬁ?self.f“Why*Wéie‘wé defeated at
(I gEipant® There weré many reasons, but. the first of all the

reasons was that ‘we ‘hed too few ships, - We had insufficient
transportation to bring bauxite and other materials from the
“”f;Sdth*ééés“ébfw@'douldféxpaﬁd'prdduﬁtion{éb51 thoucht I could
i @&Vﬁbﬁhing”afté¥’ﬁﬁatwiéfeat”unlééé'1‘hadﬂ}hé‘§hips'tb bring
~__in the raw materials, PRI e

[ .
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"”Q;“"Wasfprﬁgre€9'ﬁhdéfihﬂéxpaading rroduction in-all these three fields?
A, The résults of ny efforts to expund production in these three
- -+ fields ‘of aireraft, -iromw &nd steel, -and ‘aluwiinun, - were just

- the reverse of successfuls wirih Bl el oend W

N

ﬁ;x”fThere“wére‘thféefﬁainfreaéénS'why'I*qu*not'sﬁnCessful: First,
-~ - the decrease in shipying tonnage so drastically affected bau-
xite supply; 2. Because of thé*Shipping“shthage;Vthé‘im;ort
of coal from China, Hokkaido, Karafuto and other vlaces 1o
- Jupan' were drastically cut, therefore, steel production wens

downe - LT

Qi You say Your efforts were unsuccessful. ' Would you sby produc—
- %ibn was higher in the summer of 1944 than at the end of 194«7
A, *Yesy it wﬁs-deh at the end of 194« very, Very much,
Q. - How much was it decreased? L
Ay o TUwill® repory later’ if vou like,-but it was very, very much
- Qs - When did yow say the best production was achieved in these
t fields - would that be in the spring of 19uww? - ' '
Ayt It was best at- the besinning of'the-war;ifnfter the war Dbegan,
- o production went- down (Lrobably meaning the geheral lever, Fitha ) o
-~ For-five or ‘six months after Deceuber 19=l, production went
B S pﬁ-but5a£$ér*Jﬁné:;942'géneral‘pfdduCtion'stehdilyfdeclined.
' *FfWith’thE”éxbbptith0f+airCraft production, everything went
. down, but aftcr ny adninistration-stirted, the aircraft jro-
. -duction only contihuedto rise until the beginning of 19+4.
From the beginning of 194« it started to go down.

“ el “fDﬁ&an*Shfpﬁing“prodhC%iph increase? o SR

A ™ “ﬁghipyihg*also*wehtfup“ug%il*the*mi&aie‘of 19a4

N QE“' when“Y°ﬁ'SaidﬂPfQ@ﬁCtibﬂ:wentdbwn“in*194ly'yoﬁmeunt'tne Zene—
R ral- nroduction level went down. Production--of* some items dilu

| &0 un, however, didn't they? i S SR L

Ul Fee, that 4h cofPetty -V YT
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INTERROGATION NO. 50+ (Cont'd.) 0 i it B b 5 68 A i

. One .of . the - thHings . Jou were connected.. with.was unified gdiini-
. stration. . I .remember jyou said in.your first press confercnce.
. v after-you:becane Munitions.Minister: - "Now the Munitions

. Ministry is an aircraft produotion board and aircraft pro-

duction is cantralized under the Munitious Ministry.ﬁbut
there are still some itens that the Aray and Navy control,

., -like' .land .ordnance, - shipping, . ete, " Your.aim was t0.bring

the adninistration of these .items under the Munitions Mini-
stry also wasn't it? To.what extent did. you succeed in thisg .
YOEABE. 3T iasils hoaaed Ay ' - L

It was agreed - mong.the'wlnistars,amnd partlcularly tha,ﬂavy

and arnay, and .nyself that unification was necessary - Very,
. very urgent -~ but. there had ‘been this old competition between

the: Arny and Nawvy, ‘and the lower .officer ranks simply did not

....like: the -idesa, .so even .though ‘I urged unification, I could
: not: get..the zeadle .to really do it to any aspreciable extent,
7.0 80 I had -;oul'y. the;mo.s:b linited success. B L e

.?Tha 'ueans the only 1tbm that wa's effectlvely centralized

was aircraft? Was iron and steel centralized or were there
other itens?

. Here: is' an exam.le of the difficulties of effecting unifica-,
¢ ..tion..: Su:.ose, .for examrle, that they wanted 30,000 machine,,
‘L Bo6ls ana.they.needed.then_for steppin. un» aircraft produc-

tion. I would ut in an order and the Navy would put in an
order, and the Arny would put in an order to the sane nakers,
and they would all struggle to get their machine tools orders

. Tilled first, - But in fact, the nakers might only produce,

. say,. 10,000, ‘Then,.ny job was,: in order to satisfy every-

- body,. to give 1/3 to .the Arny and 1/8 to the Navy and 1/3

He

Yo the Munitions Mlnlstry..
was this true for aircraft also? It was ny understanding that
the Army and Navy gave up their separate struggle for aircraft

and. the Munitions Ministry wandled all aircraft,

- The .fact was that.'they achieved unification as rewards the
plan for the increase of -yroduction for aircraft but they had
these various departments in the Navy for shipbuilding, etc.
and in the Arny for tanks and guns, etc., and since they
were all keeping on getting these. tools, they did not g¢ilve a.
damn:.for the aircraft, Although there was theoretical unifi-
cation, in fact they could not achieve actual unification.
What [I' am saying inreffect is this - I was Munitions Minister
and iy function,aétually was that. of conciliator -between Arny,
- Navy and Air <.eoplde. The Navy ignt put in an order for

- 30,000 tons of steel,’ the Arny, an order. for:10,000 tons, and
". the aircraft eople for 10,000 tons. ' .The "tntal is 50,000 touns,
. but. due to various .circumstances, .the actual prnduction was only

~30,000. tons.. The Navy had ordered 30,000 tons and they sald,
"Tnese are ours, and the Arny- said "It isn!t" and the air people
said, "It .is not" and they alimost came to blows. So, I was

called in to sort of knock their heads together and say, "You
hhve 0t to divide ug this production.!

What things were nominally under the Munitions Ministry? What
were the items that the Munitions Ministry controlled com:letely?
Aircraft was one, I know - was it also iron and. steell? .Now,,
the Arny and Navy had fields which they completely controlled -
Wes 1t land weapon:, petroleun, etc.? Could you gilyve ile those
three lists? ' .
In order to resolve this friction between the Arny and Navy.
particularly, I had to take out frona the Navy and Arny thelr
various key personnel and put -therm in the Munitions Ministry.
That helped to solve difficulties as they camne uz, and in that
way we were able to jpush aircraft production, It helied to
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[ NTERROGATION W0. 504 (Cont'd).

QCont' ) unify the ﬁroduction effort. Even that did not work,
‘though. . I can supply the lists you speak of,

Qe There were rerorts that I saw that when you resigned, that

Al .Zdlbatsu concerns such as Mitsubishi and Sumitomno were con-

. cerned over the fact that you, as a Mitsul man, were Munitions
.Mlnlster and that Yoshida, Shigeru, who came in afterwards was
a bureaucrat and who was not connected with any of the con-
cerns and, therefore, could be expected tn hold the bdlance
evenly. Is there anything at all to that story?

A. The facts are sonewhat different. Production went down se-

" riously - it was not £oing well during the latter half of 194«
I felt this very keenly., In December 194«, I contracted pneu-
aonia and at that tine ‘there was Cabinet reshaffle. At this
tine, I wanted to resi.n because the U.S. air Force had be-
gun hitting nur factories and alon& with the difficulties of

- production and my sickness, I wanted to stop. Yonai and Koiso
tried to persuade me to continue, but I said I thought ro-
duction could not be imuroved unless I resigned, so I finally
prevailed uw»hon Koiso to let me stop, and sn after Knisn agreed,
then Yonai agcreed, and I resigned, Then, the question was 1o
get somebody accertable to both the Arny and the Navy, and
SO they acreed on a com romise nan - Yoshida - who could not
do anytning anyway - they thought perhaps that having a nan
who didnot know anytiing, they could both have their way.

Trey never did succeed in getting anyone acceptable to Ddoth
sarties, A8 regards Mitsubishi and Suaitono, there was no
bad feelins or jealousy at all, but outside of the ola Zai-

.batsu, there were bad feelings on the vart. of groups called
the new Zaibatsu. |

Q. Who were they?
A, I hEnltate to uefino the new Zalbatsu or ive their nanes -
" it would-be extrenely embarrassin.. I can say tiis much,
_howevcr - bLCdUSu I did things.in my way and daid not accept
any . dicte tlJn from this new erowd, I was unacceptabdle 10
then., '

Q... Was this anotner reason why Yoshida was a good compromisel?
| Was not he opposed by the new Zaibatsu?. |
A. :{Tnls YOShldm was one of the:bureawnerats and he wneturally could
" be moved .by the bureaucrats. The new. Zaivatus were tied up
with the bureaucracy and the two. of .them could work together,
naturally he was dCGOytabl@ to the new. Zalbdtsu.

- Qa In the bo,l’mlnD of 19;5, 50u a&aln had a nission with regard
to iron ‘and steel rwauctiﬁn, Wos tnis task similar to the
0ne in whlch you nade his e&rller ins,ection rafonts. Or was

this a different tyve of job? N :

A.. I had had some success 1in increasing tne Shl“bulldlﬂL proauc—
tion, 4 concent¢ated on that because I thought it was the
pivotal questlon in the war situation. I had slight success,
As an examale, I wanted to have a 10,000 ton ship to take

12,000 tons instead of 8, 000 tons, I insisted upon using the
nresent ships to the maximum. - I did not succeed agaln,

Qe In this 3eriod. withfrerard to the iron and steel industry,
your primary concern then was to increase the flow 2 raw
materials., Were there nther aspects of the problem which you
dealt with or just the shiipping problem?

A, . There were five different control associations handling freight -
shipi.ing control, lichter control, storehouse control, intcrnal
transportation control, and one more. My recommendatlon was
that when the labor under one control associatlion was not busy
it should be used by one of the other associatious.
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4. (Cont'd)s I made the utmost efforts to dlssolve these control

asgociations so that labor could be moved freely from one-task
to another. I did my best but I could not succeed in dis-
solving these associations. | wantcd to make one association
ihstead of five. Essentlally. the: yeojle who were in these
contrpol assbelations had ambitions - did not want these asso-
ciations dlssolved. and the bureaucrats supported these con-
trol a33001at10ns and actually ny yldns were not realized.

I have several questions which are really technical questions
concerninb iron and steel, I might just say we don't have time
to discuss these questlons in detail and nerhaps you could sub-
mit some observations on- them, Perhaps you can write these

| questlons down and exslain them, The first questinn is: At

one perilod there was a small Hlant ;| rogram in the iron and
steel" 1nduntry AR, order to increase production in iron
ore and" steel - 1a the steel industry object to t his »lan?

“ Did the Arny 1nslst on this‘plan? What conclusions diu Mr.

Fujiwara make as to the wisdom of this ;lan and the way in
which it was carried out? Why weren't larger lants of greater
efficiency and requiring less materials, labor and trans;gortd,
not installed in the existing plants? Why were vonr grade
taw materials, including poor grade iron ore, to be used 1in-
stead of ‘the richer ore at Tohendo? When raw materials be-
cane seéarce, i.e., ore and cnal became scarce ~ why was .TI0-
duction not fully ratinnalized, i.e., concentrated in the
lar;est “lants and the plants nearest to the mainland 1n
1943-44 instead of letting many small, scattered nlants ope#-
rate?

Tkis yplan was set up by the Army and Navy instead of using
experts. Later the plan was to be carried out by experts,
but it was started out by ¢reennorns. The Navy controlled
most of the steel i:lants throughout Japan.. Yawata, Muroran
and Kamaishi all had Navy men in charge of the j.laats,
Naturally, the Aray‘'wished to» build up their plants in some
other place, for instance, in North China and Korea. The
Army went abroad and the Navy controlied most of the plants
in Japan. The grouble was that if they tried to build new
big plants - additional bi,, facilities for the production of
orc and steel - it would take at least two years and there
was no time., So the new Zaibvbatsu, wio hac connections with
the Army, said, "How about building these small plants in
Japan and bringing materials fron North China and Japan?™
There were no big Zaibatsu steel enterprises and there was
no steel industry objection - it was all under the Navy. On
the score of brincinge in materials - since they were to be
uséd in a sort of unified way, there was mo objectinn on the

‘rart of the Navy, The Aray and the new Zaibatsu supoorted the

wlah for small plants'in order: to produce steel more quickly.
It included nlants to yroduce up to steel., Actually, it was
not successful in producing steel. Just as they were reaching
the final steel stage the war stoppred. I did not'think the
small plant »lan " in ﬂorth China and Knrea would be successiul-
I made some investigation of that. First, they could only
work in the summer, and second, it was diverting technical
"skill from the main rOauction'centefs in Japan, and third,
they would have to, use bad coal, and fourth bad quality 1iron
ore. Théerefore, 1 thought that would fail., That 'included
North China and Xorea only, In North China and Korea, they
had to rely on jorr materials, i.c¢., iron ore and coal, De-
causc the cood coal was monopnlized by the industry in Japan
FProper. (In the early period, there was shipping for these
materials; later, even these stopped Ed.) The new Zaibatsu
and the bureaucrats thoucht that siuce there were only enough
ships to bring the ore and coal from China and elsewhere for
the bi, plants and since they did have gaterials in Japan,
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A. Cont'@. even though poor quality, and they could transport then
by railroad, therefore small plants should be built. Inexperi-
enced eople fell for the plan of creating small plants in Japan.
It was a crazy rlan, in ay opinion, The havy people had no ob-
jection to the plan to build small plants in North Chine be-
cause these did not interfere with big nlant operation in Japan.
The snall -5lant len in Japan failedj 1t also failed in China,
larcely because of poor raw naterials, and 'alsn because of the
cold climate. Toward the end of the war it was immossible to
work the bi. plants in Japan at full cavaclty, because taey
could not bring in enou.h raw materials, so they tried a new
plan of transferring biy plants from Japan to China, The Dbest
coking coal was in North China, ZEarly 1in the war tiey could unot
brins to Japan, so they declded to nove sone big plants to North
China where it would be near the good ore., Production of ore
in Tohendo amrunted to such that the Manchurian steel plants
cnuld use most of it and there was surplus left to De imported
intn Janan. Tie Showa Steel plaat in Anshan needed aobout a
1illion tons of iron ore, most of which had to be imvorted from
North China or Inner Mongolia, In order to find out how nuch
iron ore could be seat to Japan. I was sent to investiegatve.
They attem,ted to fully rationalize the big vlants in Japan
but there were nnt enouch raw materials to ojnerate thei.,

Q. Why didn't they drop out some of the big plants and concentrate
on just the very larcest plants?

A In all .oes back to the guestinn that they hac no raw naterials.
They tried to put the plan through out they just did.nct have
the materials here in Japan, Bven if they concentrated on a
few of the bigoeest plants, there still would not be enougll raw
naterials to operate them «t full capacity. The situation was
very desperate s» that they even took tae nachinery in sone
idle plants and broke it ur for scrap 1n nrder to Let scral
£fyr the steel industry. This happened just before the end of
tne war,

Qe In the 1943 weriod, could they have coacentrated resources ol
the biguer plants and nnot bothered witi the smell plants?

He In 1943 and 194~ the wrocram to increase steel productlon cen-
tered on the small plant program, and so they did not think
at thot time of concentrating facilities in the largest plants.
In this carlier weriod, the materials shortages IoT the Dbig
rlants were nnt so acute.

Qe Were the nen who were Hucrating these saall plants - the tech-
nical men - were they efficient, skilled technlclans, and did
they do a gnod job as nanagers?t

A, In <eneral, they were sultable nen and had some general skill,
etc. PFarlier I noted that the taking away of the technical
men wes rather bac f£or the troduction systen, but there were
snme ¢0od 1en heandling the smnall plant .rogran.
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